**[MS-ASTASK]:**

**Exchange ActiveSync: Tasks Class Protocol**

Intellectual Property Rights Notice for Open Specifications Documentation

* **Technical Documentation.** Microsoft publishes Open Specifications documentation (“this documentation”) for protocols, file formats, data portability, computer languages, and standards support. Additionally, overview documents cover inter-protocol relationships and interactions.
* **Copyrights**. This documentation is covered by Microsoft copyrights. Regardless of any other terms that are contained in the terms of use for the Microsoft website that hosts this documentation, you can make copies of it in order to develop implementations of the technologies that are described in this documentation and can distribute portions of it in your implementations that use these technologies or in your documentation as necessary to properly document the implementation. You can also distribute in your implementation, with or without modification, any schemas, IDLs, or code samples that are included in the documentation. This permission also applies to any documents that are referenced in the Open Specifications documentation.
* **No Trade Secrets**. Microsoft does not claim any trade secret rights in this documentation.
* **Patents**. Microsoft has patents that might cover your implementations of the technologies described in the Open Specifications documentation. Neither this notice nor Microsoft's delivery of this documentation grants any licenses under those patents or any other Microsoft patents. However, a given Open Specifications document might be covered by the Microsoft [Open Specifications Promise](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=214445) or the [Microsoft Community Promise](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=214448). If you would prefer a written license, or if the technologies described in this documentation are not covered by the Open Specifications Promise or Community Promise, as applicable, patent licenses are available by contacting [iplg@microsoft.com](mailto:iplg@microsoft.com).
* **Trademarks**. The names of companies and products contained in this documentation might be covered by trademarks or similar intellectual property rights. This notice does not grant any licenses under those rights. For a list of Microsoft trademarks, visit [www.microsoft.com/trademarks](http://www.microsoft.com/trademarks).
* **Fictitious Names**. The example companies, organizations, products, domain names, email addresses, logos, people, places, and events that are depicted in this documentation are fictitious. No association with any real company, organization, product, domain name, email address, logo, person, place, or event is intended or should be inferred.

**Reservation of Rights**. All other rights are reserved, and this notice does not grant any rights other than as specifically described above, whether by implication, estoppel, or otherwise.

**Tools**. The Open Specifications documentation does not require the use of Microsoft programming tools or programming environments in order for you to develop an implementation. If you have access to Microsoft programming tools and environments, you are free to take advantage of them. Certain Open Specifications documents are intended for use in conjunction with publicly available standards specifications and network programming art and, as such, assume that the reader either is familiar with the aforementioned material or has immediate access to it.

**Preliminary Documentation.** This particular Open Specifications document provides documentation for past and current releases and/or for the pre-release version of this technology. This document provides final documentation for past and current releases and preliminary documentation, as applicable and specifically noted in this document, for the pre-release version. Microsoft will release final documentation in connection with the commercial release of the updated or new version of this technology. Because this documentation might change between the pre-release version and the final version of this technology, there are risks in relying on this preliminary documentation. To the extent that you incur additional development obligations or any other costs as a result of relying on this preliminary documentation, you do so at your own risk.

**Revision Summary**

| Date | Revision History | Revision Class | Comments |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| 12/3/2008 | 1.0.0 | Major | Initial Release. |
| 4/10/2009 | 2.0.0 | Major | Updated technical content and applicable product releases. |
| 7/15/2009 | 3.0.0 | Major | Revised and edited for technical content. |
| 11/4/2009 | 4.0.0 | Major | Updated and revised the technical content. |
| 2/10/2010 | 5.0.0 | Major | Updated and revised the technical content. |
| 5/5/2010 | 6.0.0 | Major | Updated and revised the technical content. |
| 8/4/2010 | 7.0 | Major | Significantly changed the technical content. |
| 11/3/2010 | 7.1 | Minor | Clarified the meaning of the technical content. |
| 3/18/2011 | 7.2 | Minor | Clarified the meaning of the technical content. |
| 8/5/2011 | 8.0 | Major | Significantly changed the technical content. |
| 10/7/2011 | 9.0 | Major | Significantly changed the technical content. |
| 1/20/2012 | 10.0 | Major | Significantly changed the technical content. |
| 4/27/2012 | 10.0 | None | No changes to the meaning, language, or formatting of the technical content. |
| 7/16/2012 | 10.1 | Minor | Clarified the meaning of the technical content. |
| 10/8/2012 | 10.2 | Minor | Clarified the meaning of the technical content. |
| 2/11/2013 | 10.2 | None | No changes to the meaning, language, or formatting of the technical content. |
| 7/26/2013 | 11.0 | Major | Significantly changed the technical content. |
| 11/18/2013 | 11.0 | None | No changes to the meaning, language, or formatting of the technical content. |
| 2/10/2014 | 11.0 | None | No changes to the meaning, language, or formatting of the technical content. |
| 4/30/2014 | 12.0 | Major | Significantly changed the technical content. |
| 7/31/2014 | 12.1 | Minor | Clarified the meaning of the technical content. |
| 10/30/2014 | 12.2 | Minor | Clarified the meaning of the technical content. |
| 5/26/2015 | 13.0 | Major | Significantly changed the technical content. |
| 6/30/2015 | 13.0 | None | No changes to the meaning, language, or formatting of the technical content. |
| 9/14/2015 | 14.0 | Major | Significantly changed the technical content. |
| 6/9/2016 | 15.0 | Major | Significantly changed the technical content. |

Table of Contents

[1 Introduction 6](#_Toc453109927)

[1.1 Glossary 6](#_Toc453109928)

[1.2 References 7](#_Toc453109929)

[1.2.1 Normative References 7](#_Toc453109930)

[1.2.2 Informative References 7](#_Toc453109931)

[1.3 Overview 7](#_Toc453109932)

[1.4 Relationship to Other Protocols 7](#_Toc453109933)

[1.5 Prerequisites/Preconditions 8](#_Toc453109934)

[1.6 Applicability Statement 8](#_Toc453109935)

[1.7 Versioning and Capability Negotiation 8](#_Toc453109936)

[1.8 Vendor-Extensible Fields 8](#_Toc453109937)

[1.9 Standards Assignments 8](#_Toc453109938)

[2 Messages 9](#_Toc453109939)

[2.1 Transport 9](#_Toc453109940)

[2.2 Message Syntax 9](#_Toc453109941)

[2.2.1 Namespaces 9](#_Toc453109942)

[2.2.2 Elements 9](#_Toc453109943)

[2.2.2.1 Body 12](#_Toc453109944)

[2.2.2.1.1 Body (AirSyncBase Namespace) 12](#_Toc453109945)

[2.2.2.1.2 Body (Tasks Namespace) 12](#_Toc453109946)

[2.2.2.2 BodySize 13](#_Toc453109947)

[2.2.2.3 BodyTruncated 14](#_Toc453109948)

[2.2.2.4 CalendarType 14](#_Toc453109949)

[2.2.2.5 Categories 16](#_Toc453109950)

[2.2.2.6 Category 17](#_Toc453109951)

[2.2.2.7 Complete 17](#_Toc453109952)

[2.2.2.8 DateCompleted 18](#_Toc453109953)

[2.2.2.9 DayOfMonth 18](#_Toc453109954)

[2.2.2.10 DayOfWeek 19](#_Toc453109955)

[2.2.2.11 DeadOccur 20](#_Toc453109956)

[2.2.2.12 DueDate 21](#_Toc453109957)

[2.2.2.13 FirstDayOfWeek 22](#_Toc453109958)

[2.2.2.14 Importance 23](#_Toc453109959)

[2.2.2.15 Interval 23](#_Toc453109960)

[2.2.2.16 IsLeapMonth 24](#_Toc453109961)

[2.2.2.17 MonthOfYear 25](#_Toc453109962)

[2.2.2.18 Occurrences 26](#_Toc453109963)

[2.2.2.19 OrdinalDate 26](#_Toc453109964)

[2.2.2.20 Recurrence 27](#_Toc453109965)

[2.2.2.21 Regenerate 28](#_Toc453109966)

[2.2.2.22 ReminderSet 29](#_Toc453109967)

[2.2.2.23 ReminderTime 29](#_Toc453109968)

[2.2.2.24 Sensitivity 30](#_Toc453109969)

[2.2.2.25 Start 31](#_Toc453109970)

[2.2.2.26 StartDate 31](#_Toc453109971)

[2.2.2.27 Subject 32](#_Toc453109972)

[2.2.2.28 SubOrdinalDate 33](#_Toc453109973)

[2.2.2.29 Type 33](#_Toc453109974)

[2.2.2.30 Until 34](#_Toc453109975)

[2.2.2.31 UtcDueDate 35](#_Toc453109976)

[2.2.2.32 UtcStartDate 35](#_Toc453109977)

[2.2.2.33 WeekOfMonth 36](#_Toc453109978)

[3 Protocol Details 38](#_Toc453109979)

[3.1 Client Details 38](#_Toc453109980)

[3.1.1 Abstract Data Model 38](#_Toc453109981)

[3.1.2 Timers 38](#_Toc453109982)

[3.1.3 Initialization 38](#_Toc453109983)

[3.1.4 Higher-Layer Triggered Events 38](#_Toc453109984)

[3.1.4.1 Synchronizing Task Data Between Client and Server 38](#_Toc453109985)

[3.1.4.2 Searching a Server for Task Data 38](#_Toc453109986)

[3.1.4.3 Requesting Details for Specific Tasks 38](#_Toc453109987)

[3.1.5 Message Processing Events and Sequencing Rules 38](#_Toc453109988)

[3.1.5.1 ItemOperations Command Request 39](#_Toc453109989)

[3.1.5.2 Search Command Request 39](#_Toc453109990)

[3.1.5.3 Sync Command Request 39](#_Toc453109991)

[3.1.6 Timer Events 39](#_Toc453109992)

[3.1.7 Other Local Events 39](#_Toc453109993)

[3.2 Server Details 39](#_Toc453109994)

[3.2.1 Abstract Data Model 39](#_Toc453109995)

[3.2.2 Timers 40](#_Toc453109996)

[3.2.3 Initialization 40](#_Toc453109997)

[3.2.4 Higher-Layer Triggered Events 40](#_Toc453109998)

[3.2.4.1 Synchronizing Task Data Between Client and Server 40](#_Toc453109999)

[3.2.4.2 Searching for Task Data 40](#_Toc453110000)

[3.2.4.3 Requesting Details for Specific Tasks 40](#_Toc453110001)

[3.2.5 Message Processing Events and Sequencing Rules 40](#_Toc453110002)

[3.2.5.1 ItemOperations Command Response 40](#_Toc453110003)

[3.2.5.2 Search Command Response 41](#_Toc453110004)

[3.2.5.3 Sync Command Response 41](#_Toc453110005)

[3.2.5.3.1 Importance Element 41](#_Toc453110006)

[3.2.5.3.2 ReminderSet Element 41](#_Toc453110007)

[3.2.5.3.3 Start Element 41](#_Toc453110008)

[3.2.5.3.4 Occurrences and Until Elements 41](#_Toc453110009)

[3.2.6 Timer Events 42](#_Toc453110010)

[3.2.7 Other Local Events 42](#_Toc453110011)

[4 Protocol Examples 43](#_Toc453110012)

[4.1 Synchronizing Tasks Between Client and Server 43](#_Toc453110013)

[4.2 Synchronizing Tasks on the Client 44](#_Toc453110014)

[4.3 Fetching Task Data with the ItemOperations Command 45](#_Toc453110015)

[4.4 Searching for Tasks 46](#_Toc453110016)

[5 Security 48](#_Toc453110017)

[5.1 Security Considerations for Implementers 48](#_Toc453110018)

[5.2 Index of Security Parameters 48](#_Toc453110019)

[6 Appendix A: Full XML Schema 49](#_Toc453110020)

[7 Appendix B: Product Behavior 51](#_Toc453110021)

[8 Change Tracking 52](#_Toc453110022)

[9 Index 54](#_Toc453110023)

# Introduction

The Exchange ActiveSync: Tasks Class Protocol enables the communication of task data between a mobile device and the server in the ActiveSync protocol.

Sections 1.5, 1.8, 1.9, 2, and 3 of this specification are normative. All other sections and examples in this specification are informative.

## Glossary

This document uses the following terms:

**Coordinated Universal Time (UTC)**: A high-precision atomic time standard that approximately tracks Universal Time (UT). It is the basis for legal, civil time all over the Earth. Time zones around the world are expressed as positive and negative offsets from UTC. In this role, it is also referred to as Zulu time (Z) and Greenwich Mean Time (GMT). In these specifications, all references to UTC refer to the time at UTC-0 (or GMT).

**message store**: A unit of containment for a single hierarchy of Folder objects, such as a mailbox or public folders.

**recurrence pattern**: Information for a repeating event, such as the start and end time, the number of occurrences, and how occurrences are spaced, such as daily, weekly, or monthly.

**recurring task**: A series of Task objects that are described by a recurrence pattern.

**reminder**: A generally user-visible notification that a specified time has been reached. A reminder is most commonly related to the beginning of a meeting or the due time of a task but it can be applied to any object type.

**Wireless Application Protocol (WAP) Binary XML (WBXML)**: A compact binary representation of [**XML**](#gt_982b7f8e-d516-4fd5-8d5e-1a836081ed85) that is designed to reduce the transmission size of XML documents over narrowband communication channels.

**XML**: The Extensible Markup Language, as described in [[XML1.0]](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90599).

**XML element**: An [**XML**](#gt_982b7f8e-d516-4fd5-8d5e-1a836081ed85) structure that typically consists of a start tag, an end tag, and the information between those tags. Elements can have attributes (1) and can contain other elements.

**XML namespace**: A collection of names that is used to identify elements, types, and attributes in XML documents identified in a URI reference [[RFC3986]](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90453). A combination of XML namespace and local name allows XML documents to use elements, types, and attributes that have the same names but come from different sources. For more information, see [[XMLNS-2ED]](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90602).

**XML schema**: A description of a type of XML document that is typically expressed in terms of constraints on the structure and content of documents of that type, in addition to the basic syntax constraints that are imposed by [**XML**](#gt_982b7f8e-d516-4fd5-8d5e-1a836081ed85) itself. An XML schema provides a view of a document type at a relatively high level of abstraction.

**XML schema definition (XSD)**: The World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) standard language that is used in defining XML schemas. Schemas are useful for enforcing structure and constraining the types of data that can be used validly within other XML documents. XML schema definition refers to the fully specified and currently recommended standard for use in authoring [**XML schemas**](#gt_bd0ce6f9-c350-4900-827e-951265294067).

**MAY, SHOULD, MUST, SHOULD NOT, MUST NOT:** These terms (in all caps) are used as defined in [[RFC2119]](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90317). All statements of optional behavior use either MAY, SHOULD, or SHOULD NOT.

## References

Links to a document in the Microsoft Open Specifications library point to the correct section in the most recently published version of the referenced document. However, because individual documents in the library are not updated at the same time, the section numbers in the documents may not match. You can confirm the correct section numbering by checking the [Errata](http://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/dn781092.aspx).

### Normative References

We conduct frequent surveys of the normative references to assure their continued availability. If you have any issue with finding a normative reference, please contact [dochelp@microsoft.com](mailto:dochelp@microsoft.com). We will assist you in finding the relevant information.

[MS-ASAIRS] Microsoft Corporation, "[Exchange ActiveSync: AirSyncBase Namespace Protocol](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASAIRS%5d.pdf#Section_d1ba798741bf483d904596dfe11e3d1c)".

[MS-ASCMD] Microsoft Corporation, "[Exchange ActiveSync: Command Reference Protocol](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a)".

[MS-ASDTYPE] Microsoft Corporation, "[Exchange ActiveSync: Data Types](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3)".

[MS-ASEMAIL] Microsoft Corporation, "[Exchange ActiveSync: Email Class Protocol](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASEMAIL%5d.pdf#Section_f3d27369e0f54164aa5e9b1abda16f5f)".

[MS-ASHTTP] Microsoft Corporation, "[Exchange ActiveSync: HTTP Protocol](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d)".

[MS-ASWBXML] Microsoft Corporation, "[Exchange ActiveSync: WAP Binary XML (WBXML) Algorithm](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASWBXML%5d.pdf#Section_39973eb11e404eb5ac7442781c5a33bc)".

[RFC2119] Bradner, S., "Key words for use in RFCs to Indicate Requirement Levels", BCP 14, RFC 2119, March 1997, [http://www.rfc-editor.org/rfc/rfc2119.txt](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90317)

[XMLNS] Bray, T., Hollander, D., Layman, A., et al., Eds., "Namespaces in XML 1.0 (Third Edition)", W3C Recommendation, December 2009, [http://www.w3.org/TR/2009/REC-xml-names-20091208/](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=191840)

[XMLSCHEMA1] Thompson, H., Beech, D., Maloney, M., and Mendelsohn, N., Eds., "XML Schema Part 1: Structures", W3C Recommendation, May 2001, [http://www.w3.org/TR/2001/REC-xmlschema-1-20010502/](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90608)

[XMLSCHEMA2/2] Biron, P., and Malhotra, A., Eds., "XML Schema Part 2: Datatypes Second Edition", W3C Recommendation, October 2004, [http://www.w3.org/TR/2004/REC-xmlschema-2-20041028/](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90609)

[XML] World Wide Web Consortium, "Extensible Markup Language (XML) 1.0 (Fourth Edition)", W3C Recommendation 16 August 2006, edited in place 29 September 2006, [http://www.w3.org/TR/2006/REC-xml-20060816/](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90598)

### Informative References

None.

## Overview

This protocol describes an [**XML**](#gt_982b7f8e-d516-4fd5-8d5e-1a836081ed85) representation of task list data that is used for client and server communication as described in [[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a). The task list data is included in protocol command requests when task list data is sent from the client to the server, and is included in protocol command responses when task list data is returned from the server to the client.

## Relationship to Other Protocols

This protocol describes the XML representation of tasks that are used by the command requests and responses that are described in [[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a). The protocol governing the transmission of these commands between the client and the server is described in [MS-ASCMD]. The [**Wireless Application Protocol (WAP) Binary XML (WBXML)**](#gt_46afe83a-7afd-42b3-8e27-07b6ae8d3dbc), as described in [[MS-ASWBXML]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASWBXML%5d.pdf#Section_39973eb11e404eb5ac7442781c5a33bc), is used to transmit the XML markup that constitutes the request body and the response body.

All data types in this document conform to the data type definitions that are described in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3). Common [**XML schema**](#gt_bd0ce6f9-c350-4900-827e-951265294067) elements used by other classes are defined in [[MS-ASAIRS]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASAIRS%5d.pdf#Section_d1ba798741bf483d904596dfe11e3d1c).

For conceptual background information and overviews of the relationships and interactions between this and other protocols, see [[MS-OXPROTO]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-OXPROTO%5d.pdf#Section_734ab967e43e425babe1974af56c0283).

## Prerequisites/Preconditions

None.

## Applicability Statement

This protocol describes a set of [**XML elements**](#gt_a364f92c-0374-4568-b7f8-40bd74437dd5) that are used to communicate task data when using the commands described in [[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a). This set of elements is applicable when communicating task data such as the task name, start and due dates, and recurrence options and exceptions between a mobile device and a server. These elements are not applicable when communicating calendar, note, contact, or document data between a mobile device and a server.

## Versioning and Capability Negotiation

None.

## Vendor-Extensible Fields

None.

## Standards Assignments

None.

# Messages

## Transport

This protocol consists of a series of XML elements that are embedded inside of a command request or command response, as specified in [[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a).

The XML markup that constitutes the request body or the response body that is transmitted between the client and the server uses Wireless Application Protocol (WAP) Binary XML (WBXML), as specified in [[MS-ASWBXML]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASWBXML%5d.pdf#Section_39973eb11e404eb5ac7442781c5a33bc).

## Message Syntax

The XML schema for the **Tasks** namespace is described in section [6](#Section_c16a3dcbde5b4de99026232654d0628d).

The markup that is used by this protocol MUST be well-formed XML, as specified in [[XML]](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90598).

### Namespaces

This specification defines and references various [**XML namespaces**](#gt_485f05b3-df3b-45ac-b8bf-d05f5d185a24) using the mechanisms specified in [[XMLNS]](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=191840). Although this specification associates a specific XML namespace prefix for each XML namespace that is used, the choice of any particular XML namespace prefix is implementation-specific and is not significant for interoperability.

| **Prefix** | **Namespace URI** | **Reference** |
| --- | --- | --- |
| airsyncbase | **AirSyncBase** | [[MS-ASAIRS]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASAIRS%5d.pdf#Section_d1ba798741bf483d904596dfe11e3d1c) |
| tasks | **Tasks** |  |
| airsync | **AirSync** | [[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21 |
| email | **Email** | [[MS-ASEMAIL]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASEMAIL%5d.pdf#Section_f3d27369e0f54164aa5e9b1abda16f5f) |
| itemoperations | **ItemOperations** | [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.10 |
| search | **Search** | [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.16 |
| xs | **http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema** | [[XMLSCHEMA1]](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90608) |

### Elements

Elements of the **Tasks** class are defined in two namespaces: **Tasks** and **AirSyncBase**. All **Tasks** class elements are specified in this document; however, elements defined in the **AirSyncBase** namespace are further specified in [[MS-ASAIRS]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASAIRS%5d.pdf#Section_d1ba798741bf483d904596dfe11e3d1c).

The elements are defined in the **Tasks** namespace, except where indicated by the presence of a namespace prefix, as defined in section [2.2.1](#Section_1a06c955c1df4a8a89f205cf11980be2). A prefix is used for an element in the **Tasks** namespace only where necessary to disambiguate the element from another one of the same name.

The following elements are top-level elements of the **Task** class:

* **airsyncbase:Body** (section [2.2.2.1.1](#Section_5674d94ea6a64c2bbc8c2a1bf7faba22))
* **tasks:Body** (section [2.2.2.1.2](#Section_72ae3323a1fc4683bbe3c14a9b14d0e6))
* **BodySize** (section [2.2.2.2](#Section_e052b3c17f6d4d80b9ff5f6f24337d83))
* **BodyTruncated** (section [2.2.2.3](#Section_5abae879f8ac4cd98422edd8d6062247))
* **Categories** (section [2.2.2.5](#Section_349237a432364bc696ef5a3d361d688e))
* **Complete** (section [2.2.2.7](#Section_d889f302aef24cc28b16faa47d39fdbb))
* **DateCompleted** (section [2.2.2.8](#Section_5d8f055a4c6f413393d79295e2ffeb3f))
* **DueDate** (section [2.2.2.12](#Section_bb1fb37f57ea4a2f9b005668e3f15464))
* **Importance** (section [2.2.2.14](#Section_8fdf651fc06e4242a3126b3d9f3c996d))
* **Recurrence** (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca))
* **ReminderSet** (section [2.2.2.22](#Section_3e3d65041d2b4ca287675adf0837ce8d))
* **ReminderTime** (section [2.2.2.23](#Section_57f8dd526d8c4f73ac9805a6666b6fe0))
* **Sensitivity** (section [2.2.2.24](#Section_4ced6df8ac594cc4ac1b731fae4e90b4))
* **StartDate** (section [2.2.2.26](#Section_ed8b11a64c7b41e996348e5aba178699))
* **Subject** (section [2.2.2.27](#Section_cb5e0b263f7f44c6b5c280646150a2c5))
* **UtcDueDate** (section [2.2.2.31](#Section_f49b4f9cf44b46e78ba7c5f120aadb85))
* **UtcStartDate** (section [2.2.2.32](#Section_b3740864729440358ad7ec51fa512a23))

Except where otherwise specified in the following sections, each top-level element of the **Task** class is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as follows:

* As an optional child element of the **itemoperations:Schema** element ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.3.157) in **ItemOperations** command requests ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.10)
* As an optional child element of the **itemoperations:Properties** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.138.2) in **ItemOperations** command responses ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.10)
* As an optional child element of the **search:Properties** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.138.3) in **Search** command responses ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.16)
* As an optional child element of the **airsync:ApplicationData** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.11) in **Sync** command requests ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21)
* As an optional child element of the **airsync:ApplicationData** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.11) in **Sync** command responses ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21)

The following table summarizes the set of common XML schema element definitions defined in or used by this specification. XML schema element definitions that are specific to one or more particular operations are specified further in sections [3.1.5.1](#Section_cd092ef9b58a43b190514abe4d1ac776), [3.1.5.2](#Section_8e3dac54ce0b49c595551be878b9eb91), [3.1.5.3](#Section_94d0418aec8142bb9514c5d7bc1c01fa), [3.2.5.1](#Section_d0ff3a5ac31c49b18b1852f9c42c9e2e), [3.2.5.2](#Section_368a3b10ec5740bc8a0413919a23d2e9), and [3.2.5.3](#Section_963fc113ac774c98ba6da05456fe785c).

| Element name | Description |
| --- | --- |
| **airsyncbase:Body** | Specifies details about the body of a task item. |
| **Body** | Contains the body of a task item that is retrieved from the server. |
| **BodySize** | Specifies the full size, in characters, of the task item body. |
| **BodyTruncated** | Indicates whether the body of the task item was truncated when sent from the server. |
| **Subject** | The subject of the task item. |
| **Importance** | The importance or priority of the task item. |
| **UtcStartDate** | The [**Coordinated Universal Time (UTC)**](#gt_f2369991-a884-4843-a8fa-1505b6d5ece7) start date of the task item. |
| **StartDate** | The local start date of the task item. |
| **UtcDueDate** | The UTC due date of the task item. |
| **DueDate** | The local due date of the task item. |
| **Categories** | A collection of user-selected labels assigned to the task. |
| **Category** (section [2.2.2.6](#Section_712f9b40361c4c58ab45bbd544dbbe62)) | One of the user-selected labels that has been applied to the task item. |
| **Recurrence** | When and how often this task recurs. |
| **Type** (section [2.2.2.29](#Section_d0ea9800f8b14c5b871abff4f5c9fbb6)) | The recurrence type. |
| **Start** (section [2.2.2.25](#Section_efbd0eaee93342bc81a22e68c04d0d5a)) | The start time of a series of recurrence items. |
| **Until** (section [2.2.2.30](#Section_a5120722333c4f1fbdf1aafc4a307f35)) | The end time of a series of recurrence items. |
| **Occurrences** (section [2.2.2.18](#Section_d86b9938dded4709a05b6df38c3f7122)) | The number of occurrences before the series ends. |
| **Interval** (section [2.2.2.15](#Section_be221498a3ca42ad9f88e2605e932755)) | The interval between recurrences. |
| **DayOfWeek** (section [2.2.2.10](#Section_beee519af4cd4fe990cf85d491305807)) | The day of the week for the recurrence. |
| **DayOfMonth** (section [2.2.2.9](#Section_801de64314df4ff0b7994772a9e406ce)) | The day of the month for the recurrence. |
| **WeekOfMonth** (section [2.2.2.33](#Section_7c96b068550f457d9c986420edb23f22)) | The week of the month for the recurrence. |
| **MonthOfYear** (section [2.2.2.17](#Section_14169443d1414e09a64b7c2bacd07059)) | The month of the year for the recurrence. |
| **Regenerate** (section [2.2.2.21](#Section_095370af32df41f5af33625efa9a053d)) | Whether the task item regenerates after each task instance is complete. |
| **DeadOccur** (section [2.2.2.11](#Section_5167f64aef734e22914712abc1f9f5e8)) | Whether the task is a recurring instance. |
| **CalendarType** (section [2.2.2.4](#Section_f78253a626d7444cb9a67f9ea6afabe7)) | The calendar system used by this recurrence. |
| **IsLeapMonth** (section [2.2.2.16](#Section_c0df3bc2933d4a78aa127ba628aaf1f3)) | Whether this recurrence takes place during a leap month. |
| **FirstDayOfWeek** (section [2.2.2.13](#Section_05d687ce95f14caa97d238ff41c3ad54)) | Specifies which day is considered the first day of the calendar week for this recurrence. |
| **Complete** | Whether the task has been completed. |
| **DateCompleted** | The date on which the task item was completed. |
| **Sensitivity** | The sensitivity of the task item. |
| **ReminderTime** | The time and date at which the [**reminder**](#gt_8188a44f-a319-4d5c-9b3d-d65c4726045a) for the task item will appear. |
| **ReminderSet** | Whether a reminder for the task item has been set to appear. |
| **OrdinalDate** (section [2.2.2.19](#Section_5a6f44a9ab0c433287dc50f8779bf095)) | The time at which the client set the flag. |
| **SubOrdinalDate** (section [2.2.2.28](#Section_d04f9b966311468a8329a8691002b326)) | A value that can be used for sorting. |

#### Body

The **Body** element is defined in the **Tasks** namespace, as specified in section [2.2.2.1.2](#Section_72ae3323a1fc4683bbe3c14a9b14d0e6), for use by protocol version 2.5. It is defined in the **AirSyncBase** namespace, as specified in section [2.2.2.1.1](#Section_5674d94ea6a64c2bbc8c2a1bf7faba22), for use by protocol versions 12.0, 12.1, 14.0, 14.1, 16.0, and 16.1.

##### Body (AirSyncBase Namespace)

The **airsyncbase:Body** element is a **container** ([[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.2) element that specifies details about the body of a task item. It is defined as an element in the **AirSyncBase** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

For more details about the **airsyncbase:Body** element, see [[MS-ASAIRS]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASAIRS%5d.pdf#Section_d1ba798741bf483d904596dfe11e3d1c) section 2.2.2.9.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 |  |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

The **tasks:Body** element (section [2.2.2.1.2](#Section_72ae3323a1fc4683bbe3c14a9b14d0e6)) is used instead of the **airsyncbase:Body** element with protocol version 2.5.

##### Body (Tasks Namespace)

The **Body** element is an optional element that contains the body of a task item that is retrieved from the server. This element is defined in the **Tasks** namespace as a child of the **airsync:ApplicationData** element ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.3.11) in **Sync** command requests and responses ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21).

The value of this element is a **string** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.7.

A client can use the **airsync:Truncation** element, as specified in [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.184, to request truncation of a task item body. This conserves space and reduces data traffic when synchronizing task items. The server sets the **BodyTruncated** element (section [2.2.2.3](#Section_5abae879f8ac4cd98422edd8d6062247)) in the **Sync** response to indicate whether the body of the task item has actually been truncated. The untruncated size of the task item body is specified by the **BodySize** element (section [2.2.2.2](#Section_e052b3c17f6d4d80b9ff5f6f24337d83)).

When the client requests truncation, only the first part (or none) of each task item body is included in a synchronization. A complete task item body cannot be retrieved after a task item has been synchronized with a truncated task item body.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 |  |
| 12.1 |  |
| 14.0 |  |
| 14.1 |  |
| 16.0 |  |
| 16.1 |  |

The **airsyncbase:Body** element (section [2.2.2.1.1](#Section_5674d94ea6a64c2bbc8c2a1bf7faba22)) is used instead of the **tasks:Body** element with protocol versions 12.0, 12.1, 14.0, 14.1, 16.0, and 16.1.

#### BodySize

The **BodySize** element is an optional element that specifies the full size, in characters, of the task item body. This element is defined in the **Tasks** namespace as a child of the **airsync:ApplicationData** element ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.3.11) in **Sync** command responses ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21).

The value of this element is an **integer** data type, as specified in as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.6.

This element is present only when the **BodyTruncated** element (section [2.2.2.3](#Section_5abae879f8ac4cd98422edd8d6062247)) is set to 1. When the task item body is truncated, the **BodySize** element is included to specify the original size of the body prior to truncation.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 |  |
| 12.1 |  |
| 14.0 |  |
| 14.1 |  |
| 16.0 |  |
| 16.1 |  |

#### BodyTruncated

The **BodyTruncated** element is an optional element that indicates whether the body of the task item was truncated when sent from the server. This element is defined in the **Tasks** namespace as a child of the **airsync:ApplicationData** element ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.3.11) in **Sync** command responses ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21).

The value of this element is a **boolean** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.1.

A value of 1 indicates that the task item body has been truncated by the server; a value of 0 (zero) indicates that the task item body has not been truncated.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 |  |
| 12.1 |  |
| 14.0 |  |
| 14.1 |  |
| 16.0 |  |
| 16.1 |  |

#### CalendarType

The **CalendarType** element is a child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies the calendar system used by the task recurrence. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

A command request has a maximum of one **CalendarType** child element per **Recurrence** element when the **Type** element (section [2.2.2.29](#Section_d0ea9800f8b14c5b871abff4f5c9fbb6)) is set to a value of 2, 3, 5, or 6. If the **CalendarType** element is included in other instances, the server responds with a status 6 error (conversion error).

A command response has a minimum of one **CalendarType** child element per **Recurrence** element when the **Type** element is set to a value of 2, 3, 5, or 6; otherwise, this element is optional in command responses.

The value of the **CalendarType** element MUST be one of the values listed in the following table.

| Value | Meaning |
| --- | --- |
| 0 | Default |
| 1 | Gregorian |
| 2 | Gregorian (United States) |
| 3 | Japanese Emperor Era |
| 4 | Taiwan |
| 5 | Korean Tangun Era |
| 6 | Hijri (Arabic Lunar) |
| 7 | Thai |
| 8 | Hebrew Lunar |
| 9 | Gregorian (Middle East French) |
| 10 | Gregorian (Arabic) |
| 11 | Gregorian (Transliterated English) |
| 12 | Gregorian (Transliterated French) |
| 14 | Japanese Lunar |
| 15 | Chinese Lunar |
| 16 | Saka Era – This value is not supported; MUST not be used. |
| 17 | Chinese Lunar (Eto) – This value is not supported; MUST not be used. |
| 18 | Korean Lunar (Eto) – This value is not supported; MUST not be used. |
| 19 | Japanese Rokuyou Lunar – This value is not supported; MUST not be used. |
| 20 | Korean Lunar |
| 23 | Um al-Qura – This value is not supported; MUST not be used. |

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 |  |
| 12.0 |  |
| 12.1 |  |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Categories

The **Categories** element is a **container** ([[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.2) element that specifies a collection of user-managed labels assigned to the task. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

A command request or response has a maximum of one **Categories** element per command.

The **Categories** element can have the following child element:

**Category** (section [2.2.2.6](#Section_712f9b40361c4c58ab45bbd544dbbe62)): This element is optional.

If a **Categories** element contains no **Category** child elements in a request or response, then the categories for the specified task will be removed.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Category

The **Category** element is an optional child element of the **Categories** element (section [2.2.2.5](#Section_349237a432364bc696ef5a3d361d688e)) that specifies a category that is assigned to the task item, such as Business, Holiday, Personal, or Waiting. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is a **string** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.7.

A **Categories** element SHOULD contain no more than 300 **Category** child elements.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Complete

The **Complete** element is a required element that specifies whether the task has been completed. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

The value of the **Complete** element MUST be one of the following values.

| Value | Meaning |
| --- | --- |
| 0 | False (not completed) |
| 1 | True (completed) |

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### DateCompleted

The **DateCompleted** element specifies the date and time at which the task was completed. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

The **DateCompleted** element MUST be included in the response if the **Complete** element (section [2.2.2.7](#Section_d889f302aef24cc28b16faa47d39fdbb)) value is 1.

The value of this element is a **dateTime** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.3.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### DayOfMonth

The **DayOfMonth** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies the day of the month for the task recurrence. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

The value of the **DayOfMonth** element MUST be between 1 and 31.

A command request or response has a minimum of one **DayOfMonth** element per **Recurrence** element if the value of the **Type** element (section [2.2.2.29](#Section_d0ea9800f8b14c5b871abff4f5c9fbb6)) is either 2 or 5.

A command request or response has a maximum of one **DayOfMonth** element per **Recurrence** element.

The **DayOfMonth** element MUST only be included in requests or responses when the **Type** element value is 2 or 5. When a request is issued with the **DayOfMonth** element in other instances, the server responds with a status 6 error (conversion error).

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### DayOfWeek

The **DayOfWeek** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.11](#Section_5167f64aef734e22914712abc1f9f5e8)) that specifies the day of the week for the task recurrence. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

A command request or response has a minimum of one **DayOfWeek** element per **Recurrence** element when the **Type** element value is 1, 3, or 6.

If a request is issued with the **DayOfWeek** element when the **Type** element value is 2 or 5, the server responds with a status 6 error (conversion error). If the **Type** element value is 0 (zero), the **DayOfWeek** element is not a required child element of the **Recurrence** element.[<1>](#Appendix_A_1)

A command request or response has a maximum of one **DayOfWeek** element per **Recurrence** element.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

The value of the **DayOfWeek** element MUST be either one of the following values, or the sum of more than one of the following values (in which case this task recurs on more than one day).

| Value | Meaning |
| --- | --- |
| 1 | Sunday |
| 2 | Monday |
| 4 | Tuesday |
| 8 | Wednesday |
| 16 | Thursday |
| 32 | Friday |
| 64 | Saturday |
| 127 | Specifies the last day of the month when the value of the **WeekOfMonth** element (section [2.2.2.33](#Section_7c96b068550f457d9c986420edb23f22)) is 5. |

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### DeadOccur

The **DeadOccur** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies whether the task is an instance of a [**recurring task**](#gt_61383353-e6d8-4815-93c3-18ec00b4d3ca). It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

A command request or response has a maximum of one **DeadOccur** child element per **Recurrence** element.

Clients set this value to any non-zero value (up to 255) to mark a task as a recurring task. When clients make command requests, the value MUST be set to a non-zero value (up to 255) when marking a task as complete.

The default value of the **DeadOccur** element is 0 (zero).

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### DueDate

The **DueDate** element specifies the local due date of the task item. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

The value of this element is a **dateTime** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.3.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### FirstDayOfWeek

The **FirstDayOfWeek** element is a child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies which day is considered the first day of the calendar week for this recurrence. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

A command request has a maximum of one **FirstDayOfWeek** child element per **Recurrence** element.

A command response has a maximum of one **FirstDayOfWeek** child element per **Recurrence** element. The server MUST return a **FirstDayOfWeek** element when the value of the **Type** element (section [2.2.2.29](#Section_d0ea9800f8b14c5b871abff4f5c9fbb6)) is 1.

This element disambiguates recurrences across localities that define a different starting day for the calendar week. If this element is not included in the client’s request, then the server SHOULD identify the first day of the week for this recurrence according to the preconfigured options of the user when creating the task item.

The value of the **FirstDayOfWeek** element MUST be one of the values defined in the following table. If the client uses the **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21) to transmit a value not included in this table, then the server MUST return protocol status error 6. **Sync** command status values are specified in [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.176.17.

| Value | Meaning |
| --- | --- |
| 0 | Sunday |
| 1 | Monday |
| 2 | Tuesday |
| 3 | Wednesday |
| 4 | Thursday |
| 5 | Friday |
| 6 | Saturday |

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 |  |
| 12.0 |  |
| 12.1 |  |
| 14.0 |  |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Importance

The **Importance** element specifies the importance or priority of the task item. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

The value of the **Importance** element SHOULD be one of the following:

| Value | Meaning |
| --- | --- |
| 0 | Low |
| 1 | Normal (Default) |
| 2 | High |

If the **Importance** element is set to a value other than 0 (zero), 1, or 2 in a command request, the server will process the request successfully (that is, will not return an error code in the response) and return the same value that is set in the request.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Interval

The **Interval** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies the interval between task recurrences. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

A command request or response has a maximum of one **Interval** element per **Recurrence** element.

The value of the **Interval** element is an **unsignedShort**, as specified in [[XMLSCHEMA2/2]](http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=90609) section 3.3.23. The maximum value of this element is 999.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### IsLeapMonth

The **IsLeapMonth** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies whether the [**recurrence patterns**](#gt_4275047f-9935-46db-b9b8-8ca605d16649) occur within the leap month of the current year. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

A command request has a maximum of one **IsLeapMonth** child element per **Recurrence** element.

A command response has a maximum of one **IsLeapMonth** child element per **Recurrence** element.

This element is applied when the **CalendarType** element (section [2.2.2.4](#Section_f78253a626d7444cb9a67f9ea6afabe7)) specifies a calendar system that incorporates an embolismic (leap) month. Examples include lunisolar calendar systems such as Hebrew Lunar and Chinese Lunar. This element has no effect when specified in conjunction with the Gregorian calendar.

The value of the **IsLeapMonth** element MUST be one of the following values.

| Value | Meaning |
| --- | --- |
| 0 | False |
| 1 | True |

The default value of the **IsLeapMonth** element is 0.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 |  |
| 12.0 |  |
| 12.1 |  |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### MonthOfYear

The **MonthofYear** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies the month of the year for the task recurrence. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

A command request or response has a minimum of one **MonthofYear** child element per **Recurrence** element if the value of the **Type** element (section [2.2.2.29](#Section_d0ea9800f8b14c5b871abff4f5c9fbb6)) is either 5 or 6.

A command request or response has a maximum of one **MonthofYear** child element per **Recurrence** element.

The value of the **MonthofYear** element MUST be between 1 and 12.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Occurrences

The **Occurrences** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies the number of occurrences before the series ends. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

A command request or response has a maximum of one **Occurrences** child element per **Recurrence** element.

The **Occurrences** element and the **Until** element (section [2.2.2.30](#Section_a5120722333c4f1fbdf1aafc4a307f35)) are mutually exclusive. It is recommended that only one of these elements be included as a child element of the **Recurrence** element in a **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21). For more details about the **Occurrences** element, see section [3.2.5.3.4](#Section_6ae52ee8476d44fa83dcdce0d6deb16c).

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### OrdinalDate

The **OrdinalDate** element is a child element of the **email:Flag** element, as defined in [[MS-ASEMAIL]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASEMAIL%5d.pdf#Section_f3d27369e0f54164aa5e9b1abda16f5f) section 2.2.2.34, that specifies the time at which the client set the flag. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is a **dateTime** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.3.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 |  |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Recurrence

The **Recurrence** element is a **container** ([[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.2) element that specifies when and how often the task recurs. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

A command request or response has a maximum of one **Recurrence** element per command.

The **Recurrence** element can have the following child elements:

* **Type** (section [2.2.2.29](#Section_d0ea9800f8b14c5b871abff4f5c9fbb6)): This element is required.
* **Start** (section [2.2.2.25](#Section_efbd0eaee93342bc81a22e68c04d0d5a)): This element is required.
* **Until** (section [2.2.2.30](#Section_a5120722333c4f1fbdf1aafc4a307f35)): This element is optional.
* **Occurrences** (section [2.2.2.18](#Section_d86b9938dded4709a05b6df38c3f7122)): This element is optional.
* **Interval** (section [2.2.2.15](#Section_be221498a3ca42ad9f88e2605e932755)): This element is optional.
* **DayOfWeek** (section [2.2.2.10](#Section_beee519af4cd4fe990cf85d491305807)): This element is optional.
* **DayOfMonth** (section [2.2.2.9](#Section_801de64314df4ff0b7994772a9e406ce)): This element is optional.
* **WeekOfMonth** (section [2.2.2.33](#Section_7c96b068550f457d9c986420edb23f22)): This element is optional.
* **MonthOfYear** (section [2.2.2.17](#Section_14169443d1414e09a64b7c2bacd07059)): This element is optional.
* **Regenerate** (section [2.2.2.21](#Section_095370af32df41f5af33625efa9a053d)): This element is optional.
* **DeadOccur** (section [2.2.2.11](#Section_5167f64aef734e22914712abc1f9f5e8)): This element is optional.
* **CalendarType** (section [2.2.2.4](#Section_f78253a626d7444cb9a67f9ea6afabe7)): This element is optional.
* **IsLeapMonth** (section [2.2.2.16](#Section_c0df3bc2933d4a78aa127ba628aaf1f3)): This element is optional.
* **FirstDayOfWeek** (section [2.2.2.13](#Section_05d687ce95f14caa97d238ff41c3ad54)): This element is required in server’s responses for weekly recurrences.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Regenerate

The **Regenerate** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies whether this task item regenerates after it is completed. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

A command request or response has a maximum of one **Regenerate** child element per **Recurrence** element.

Valid patterns include Daily, Weekly, Monthly, and Yearly patterns.

If the **Regenerate** element is not included in a response, then the client MUST assume that the default value is 0 (zero) (do not regenerate).

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### ReminderSet

The **ReminderSet** element specifies whether a reminder for the task item has been set to appear. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

The value of the **ReminderSet** element MUST be one of the following values.

| Value | Meaning |
| --- | --- |
| 0 | False (no reminder is set) (Default) |
| 1 | True (a reminder is set) |

If the **ReminderSet** element contains a value other than 0 (zero) or 1 in a command request, the server responds with a status value of 6 in the command response.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### ReminderTime

The **ReminderTime** element specifies the time and date at which the reminder for the task item will appear. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

The value of this element is a **dateTime** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.3.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Sensitivity

The **Sensitivity** element specifies the sensitivity level of the task. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

The value of the **Sensitivity** element MUST be one of the following values.

| Value | Meaning |
| --- | --- |
| 0 | Normal |
| 1 | Personal |
| 2 | Private |
| 3 | Confidential |

The default value of the **Sensitivity** element is 0 (zero) (normal).

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Start

The **Start** element is a required child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies the local start date for the recurrence.[<2>](#Appendix_A_2) It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

A command request or response has a minimum of one **Start** child element per **Recurrence** element. For details about status errors returned when this requirement is not met, see section [3.2.5.3.3](#Section_39c9652e515f4c41a3b0841f8cd91efc).

A command request or response has a maximum of one **Start** child element per **Recurrence** element.

The value of this element is a **dateTime** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.3.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### StartDate

The **StartDate** element specifies the local start date of the task item. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

The value of this element is a **dateTime** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.3.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Subject

The **Subject** element is an element that specifies the subject of the task item. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is a **string** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.7.

The **Subject** element is an optional element in a **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21).

The **Subject** element is an optional element in a **Sync** command response ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21).

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### SubOrdinalDate

The **SubOrdinalDate** element is an optional child element of the **email:Flag** element, as defined in [[MS-ASEMAIL]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASEMAIL%5d.pdf#Section_f3d27369e0f54164aa5e9b1abda16f5f) section 2.2.2.34, that specifies a value that can be used for sorting. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is a **string** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.7. It can contain any **string** value and can be used for sorting if there are duplicate **OrdinalDate** element values. For details about the **OrdinalDate** element, see section [2.2.2.19](#Section_5a6f44a9ab0c433287dc50f8779bf095).

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 |  |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Type

The **Type** element is a required child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies the type of the recurrence item. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

A command request or response has a minimum of one **Type** child element per **Recurrence** element.

A command request or response has a maximum of one **Type** child element per **Recurrence** element.

If a client does not include this element in a **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21) whenever a **Recurrence** element is present, then the server MUST respond with status error 6. Status errors for the **Sync** command are specified in [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.176.17.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

The value of the **Type** element MUST be one of the following values.

| Value | Meaning |
| --- | --- |
| 0 | Recurs daily. |
| 1 | Recurs weekly. |
| 2 | Recurs monthly. |
| 3 | Recurs monthly on the nth day. |
| 5 | Recurs yearly. |
| 6 | Recurs yearly on the nth day. |

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### Until

The **Until** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies the end time of a series of recurrence items. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

A command request or response has a maximum of one **Until** child element per **Recurrence** element.

The **Occurrences** element (section [2.2.2.18](#Section_d86b9938dded4709a05b6df38c3f7122)) and the **Until** element are mutually exclusive. It is recommended that only one of these elements be included as a child element of the **Recurrence** element (section 2.2.2.20) in a **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21). For more details about the **Until** element, see section [3.2.5.3.4](#Section_6ae52ee8476d44fa83dcdce0d6deb16c).

The value of this element is a **dateTime** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.3.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### UtcDueDate

The **UtcDueDate** element specifies the UTC due date of the task item. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

The value of this element is a **dateTime** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.3.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### UtcStartDate

The **UtcStartDate** element specifies the UTC start date of the task item. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace and is used in ActiveSync command requests and responses as specified in section [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73).

The value of this element is a **dateTime** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.3.

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

#### WeekOfMonth

The **WeekOfMonth** element is an optional child element of the **Recurrence** element (section [2.2.2.20](#Section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca)) that specifies the week of the month for the task recurrence. It is defined as an element in the **Tasks** namespace.

The value of this element is an **unsignedbyte** data type, as specified in [[MS-ASDTYPE]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASDTYPE%5d.pdf#Section_dcfe20e1cb36457f8c7be5c61351f7d3) section 2.8.

A command request or response has a minimum of one **WeekOfMonth** child element per **Recurrence** element when the value of the **Type** element (section [2.2.2.29](#Section_d0ea9800f8b14c5b871abff4f5c9fbb6)) is either 3 or 6.

A command request or response has a maximum of one **WeekOfMonth** child element per **Recurrence** element.

The value of the **WeekOfMonth** element MUST be between 1 and 5. A value of 5 always designates the last week of the month.

The **WeekOfMonth** element MUST only be included in requests or responses when the **Type** element value is either 3 or 6. When a client’s request is issued with the **WeekOfMonth** element in other instances, the server responds with a status 6 error (conversion error).

**Protocol Versions**

The following table specifies the protocol versions that support this element. The client indicates the protocol version being used by setting either the MS-ASProtocolVersion header, as specified in [[MS-ASHTTP]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASHTTP%5d.pdf#Section_4cbf28dc287641c69d87ba9db86cd40d) section 2.2.1.1.2.6, or the **Protocol version** field, as specified in [MS-ASHTTP] section 2.2.1.1.1.1, in the request.

| Protocol version | Element support |
| --- | --- |
| 2.5 | X |
| 12.0 | X |
| 12.1 | X |
| 14.0 | X |
| 14.1 | X |
| 16.0 | X |
| 16.1 | X |

# Protocol Details

## Client Details

### Abstract Data Model

This section describes a conceptual model of possible data organization that an implementation maintains to participate in this protocol. The described organization is provided to facilitate the explanation of how the protocol behaves. This document does not mandate that implementations adhere to this model as long as their external behavior is consistent with that described in this document.

**Task class:** A structured XML text block that adheres to the [**XSD**](#gt_c7e91c99-e45a-44c2-a08a-c34f137a2cae) specified in section [2.2](#Section_d4e56ad8dce241a2889d3b297528f7f2). It is returned by the server to the client as part of a full XML response to the client’s command requests that are specified in section [3.1.5](#Section_98cb63dd6a0146609576adde36d78950).

**Command request:** A WBXML-formatted message that adheres to the command schemas specified in [[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a).

### Timers

None.

### Initialization

None.

### Higher-Layer Triggered Events

#### Synchronizing Task Data Between Client and Server

A client initiates synchronization of **Task** class data with the server by sending a **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21) to the server.

#### Searching a Server for Task Data

A client searches for **Task** class data on the server by sending a **Search** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.16) to the server.

#### Requesting Details for Specific Tasks

A client requests **Task** class data for one or more individual task items by sending an **ItemOperations** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.10) to the server that contains one or more **itemoperations:Fetch** elements ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.67.1).

### Message Processing Events and Sequencing Rules

The following sections specify how various elements of the **Task** class are used in the context of specific ActiveSync commands. Command details are specified in [[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a).

#### ItemOperations Command Request

A client uses an **ItemOperations** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.10) that contains one or more **itemoperations:Fetch** elements ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.67.1) to retrieve data from the server for one or more specific **Task** items.

The client can restrict the elements returned in the **ItemOperations** command response ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.10) by including the **airsyncbase:Attachments** element ([[MS-ASAIRS]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASAIRS%5d.pdf#Section_d1ba798741bf483d904596dfe11e3d1c) section 2.2.2.8) and the **airsyncbase:Body** element ([MS-ASAIRS] section 2.2.2.9) as child elements of the **itemoperations:Schema** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.157) in the **ItemOperations** command request.

For more details about the **ItemOperations** command, see [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.10.

#### Search Command Request

A client uses the **Search** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.16) to retrieve **Task** class items that match the criteria specified by the client.

Elements that belong to the **Task** class, as specified in section [2.2](#Section_d4e56ad8dce241a2889d3b297528f7f2), MUST NOT be included in a **Search** command request.

For more details about the **Search** command, see [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.16.

#### Sync Command Request

A client uses the **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21) to synchronize its **Task** class items for a specified user with the tasks currently stored by the server.

Any of the elements that belong to the **Task** class, as specified in section [2.2](#Section_d4e56ad8dce241a2889d3b297528f7f2), can be included in a **Sync** command request.

Top-level **Task** class elements, as specified in section 2.2, MUST be transmitted as child elements of the **airsync:ApplicationData** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.11) within either an **airsync:Add** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.7.2) or an **airsync:Change** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.24).

For more details about the **Sync** command, see [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21.

### Timer Events

None.

### Other Local Events

None.

## Server Details

### Abstract Data Model

This section describes a conceptual model of possible data organization that an implementation maintains to participate in this protocol. The described organization is provided to facilitate the explanation of how the protocol behaves. This document does not mandate that implementations adhere to this model as long as their external behavior is consistent with that described in this document.

**Task class:** A structured XML text block that adheres to the XSD specified in section [2.2](#Section_d4e56ad8dce241a2889d3b297528f7f2). It is returned by the server to the client as part of a full XML response to the client’s command requests specified in section [3.1.5](#Section_98cb63dd6a0146609576adde36d78950).

**Command response:** A WBXML-formatted message that adheres to the command schemas specified in [[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a).

### Timers

None.

### Initialization

None.

### Higher-Layer Triggered Events

#### Synchronizing Task Data Between Client and Server

Synchronization of **Task** class data between client and server is initiated by the client, as specified in section [3.1.4.1](#Section_5f0afbf4f56b4bb5923684bcabbf4c88). The server responds with a **Sync** command response ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21).

#### Searching for Task Data

Searching for **Task** class data is initiated by the client, as specified in section [3.1.4.2](#Section_cd9f9fdad05b409a971600f664929b0a). The server responds with a **Search** command response ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.16).

#### Requesting Details for Specific Tasks

Retrieval of **Task** class data for one or more individual task items is initiated by the client, as specified in section [3.1.4.3](#Section_badfbbd069504e2c8bab192b2b8e5eb2). The server responds with an **ItemOperations** command response ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.10).

### Message Processing Events and Sequencing Rules

The following sections specify how various elements of the **Task** class are used in the context of specific ActiveSync commands. Command details are specified in [[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a).

#### ItemOperations Command Response

When a client uses an **ItemOperations** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.10) to retrieve data from the server for one or more specific **Task** items, as specified in section [3.1.5.1](#Section_cd092ef9b58a43b190514abe4d1ac776), the server responds with an **ItemOperations** command response ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.10).

Any of the elements that belong to the **Task** class, as specified in section [2.2](#Section_d4e56ad8dce241a2889d3b297528f7f2), can be included in an **ItemOperations** command response. If an **itemoperations:Schema** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.157) is included in the **ItemOperations** command request, then the elements returned in the **ItemOperations** command response MUST be restricted to the elements that were included as child elements of the **itemoperations:Schema** element in the command request.

Top-level **Task** class elements, as specified in section 2.2, MUST be returned as child elements of the **itemoperations:Properties** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.138) in the **ItemOperations** command response.

For more information about the **ItemOperations** command, see [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.10.

#### Search Command Response

When a client uses the **Search** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.16) to retrieve **Task** class items from the server that match the criteria specified by the client, as specified in section [3.1.5.2](#Section_8e3dac54ce0b49c595551be878b9eb91), the server responds with a **Search** command response ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.16).

Any of the elements that belong to the **Task** class, as specified in section [2.2](#Section_d4e56ad8dce241a2889d3b297528f7f2), can be included in a **Search** command response.

Top-level **Task** class elements, as specified in section 2.2, are returned as child elements of the **search:Properties** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.138) in the **Search** command response.

If elements that belong to the **Task** class are included in a **Search** command request, the server MUST return a **Status** value of 2 in the **Store** element, as specified in [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.176.13.

For more details about the **Search** command, see [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.16.

#### Sync Command Response

When a client uses the **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21) to synchronize its **Task** class items for a specified user with the tasks currently stored by the server, as specified in section [3.1.5.3](#Section_94d0418aec8142bb9514c5d7bc1c01fa), the server responds with a **Sync** command response ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21).

Any of the elements that belong to the **Task** class, as specified in section [2.2](#Section_d4e56ad8dce241a2889d3b297528f7f2), can be included in a **Sync** command response.

Top-level **Task** class elements, as specified in section 2.2, are returned as child elements of the **airsync:ApplicationData** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.11) within either an **airsync:Add** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.7.2) or an **airsync:Change** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.24) in the **Sync** command response.

##### Importance Element

If the **Importance** element (section [2.2.2.5](#Section_349237a432364bc696ef5a3d361d688e)) is not included as a child element of the **airsync:Change** element in a **Sync** command request, the server MUST NOT delete the element from its [**message store**](#gt_fda94a53-448d-48d5-9991-176c530ff597), but rather keep its value unchanged.

##### ReminderSet Element

If the **ReminderSet** element (section [2.2.2.16](#Section_c0df3bc2933d4a78aa127ba628aaf1f3)) was previously set on a task but is not included as a child element of the **airsync:Change** element in a **Sync** command request, the server MUST NOT delete the element from its message store but rather keep its value unchanged.

##### Start Element

If a client does not include the **Start** element, as specified in section [2.2.2.25](#Section_efbd0eaee93342bc81a22e68c04d0d5a), in a **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21) whenever a **Recurrence** element is present, then the server MUST respond with status error 6. Status errors for the **Sync** command are specified in [MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.176.17.

##### Occurrences and Until Elements

If both the **Occurrences** element, as specified in section [2.2.2.18](#Section_d86b9938dded4709a05b6df38c3f7122), and the **Until** element, as specified in section [2.2.2.30](#Section_a5120722333c4f1fbdf1aafc4a307f35), are included in a **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21), the server MUST respect the value of the **Occurrences** element and ignore the **Until** element.

### Timer Events

None.

### Other Local Events

None.

# Protocol Examples

## Synchronizing Tasks Between Client and Server

The following example demonstrates a client’s request to create a new task on the server, and the server’s response. In this example, the client sends a **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21) to the server that contains information for a task that was created on the client, and the server responds with a **Sync** command response ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21).

Request:

1. <?xml version="1.0" encoding="utf-8"?>
2. <Sync xmlns:tasks="Tasks:" xmlns:airsyncbase="AirSyncBase:" xmlns="AirSync:">
3. <Collections>
4. <Collection>
5. <SyncKey>301865454</SyncKey>
6. <CollectionId>11</CollectionId>
7. <DeletesAsMoves>1</DeletesAsMoves>
8. <GetChanges>1</GetChanges>
9. <WindowSize>100</WindowSize>
10. <Commands>
11. <Add>
12. <ClientId>4717a10e-492d-45af-9fe3-227f74385b13</ClientId>
13. <ApplicationData>
14. <airsyncbase:Body>
15. <airsyncbase:Type>2</airsyncbase:Type>
16. <airsyncbase:Data>&lt;strong&gt;Must&lt;/strong&gt; complete TPS reports using the new cover sheet.</airsyncbase:Data>
17. </airsyncbase:Body>
18. <tasks:Subject>TPS Reports for August 2009</tasks:Subject>
19. <tasks:Importance>2</tasks:Importance>
20. <tasks:Categories>
21. <tasks:Category>Business</tasks:Category>
22. <tasks:Category>Reports</tasks:Category>
23. </tasks:Categories>
24. <tasks:Complete>0</tasks:Complete>
25. <tasks:DueDate>2009-09-03T13:00:00.000Z</tasks:DueDate>
26. <tasks:UtcDueDate>2009-09-03T20:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcDueDate>
27. <tasks:ReminderSet>1</tasks:ReminderSet>
28. <tasks:ReminderTime>2009-09-02T09:00:00.000Z</tasks:ReminderTime>
29. <tasks:Sensitivity>1</tasks:Sensitivity>
30. <tasks:StartDate>2009-09-03T09:00:00.000Z</tasks:StartDate>
31. <tasks:UtcStartDate>2009-09-03T16:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcStartDate>
32. </ApplicationData>
33. </Add>
34. </Commands>
35. </Collection>
36. </Collections>
37. </Sync>

Response:

1. <?xml version="1.0" encoding="utf-8"?>
2. <Sync xmlns="AirSync:">
3. <Collections>
4. <Collection>
5. <SyncKey>1010751843</SyncKey>
6. <CollectionId>11</CollectionId>
7. <Status>1</Status>
8. <Responses>
9. <Add>
10. <ClientId>4717a10e-492d-45af-9fe3-227f74385b13</ClientId>
11. <ServerId>11:1</ServerId>
12. <Status>1</Status>
13. </Add>
14. </Responses>
15. </Collection>
16. </Collections>
17. </Sync>

## Synchronizing Tasks on the Client

The following example demonstrates a client’s request to synchronize its task data with the server, and the server’s response. In this example, the client does not submit any changes in the **Sync** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.21), and the server responds with a **Sync** command response ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.21) that includes three changes: a new task, a changed task, and a deleted task. Elements of the **Task** class are included in the **Sync** command response as child elements of the **airsync:ApplicationData** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.11) under an **airsync:Add** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.7.2), an **airsync:Change** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.24), and an **airsync:Delete** element ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.3.42.2).

Request:

1. <?xml version="1.0" encoding="utf-8"?>
2. <Sync xmlns="AirSync:">
3. <Collections>
4. <Collection>
5. <SyncKey>761975125</SyncKey>
6. <CollectionId>19</CollectionId>
7. <DeletesAsMoves>1</DeletesAsMoves>
8. <GetChanges>1</GetChanges>
9. <WindowSize>100</WindowSize>
10. <GetChanges/>
11. </Collection>
12. </Collections>
13. </Sync>

Response:

1. <?xml version="1.0" encoding="utf-8"?>
2. <Sync xmlns="AirSync:" xmlns:airsyncbase="AirSyncBase:" xmlns:tasks="Tasks:">
3. <Collections>
4. <Collection>
5. <SyncKey>457669362</SyncKey>
6. <CollectionId>19</CollectionId>
7. <Status>1</Status>
8. <Commands>
9. <Change>
10. <ServerId>19:1</ServerId>
11. <ApplicationData>
12. <airsyncbase:Body>
13. <airsyncbase:Type>3</airsyncbase:Type>
14. <airsyncbase:EstimatedDataSize>5731</airsyncbase:EstimatedDataSize>
15. <airsyncbase:Truncated>1</airsyncbase:Truncated>
16. </airsyncbase:Body>
17. <tasks:Subject>Finish Q4 sales roll-up</tasks:Subject>
18. <tasks:Importance>1</tasks:Importance>
19. <tasks:UtcStartDate>2008-10-02T07:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcStartDate>
20. <tasks:StartDate>2008-10-02T00:00:00.000Z</tasks:StartDate>
21. <tasks:UtcDueDate>2008-10-10T07:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcDueDate>
22. <tasks:DueDate>2008-10-10T00:00:00.000Z</tasks:DueDate>
23. <tasks:Complete>0</tasks:Complete>
24. <tasks:Sensitivity>0</tasks:Sensitivity>
25. <tasks:ReminderTime>2008-10-10T19:30:00.000Z</tasks:ReminderTime>
26. <tasks:ReminderSet>1</tasks:ReminderSet>
27. </ApplicationData>
28. </Change>
29. <Add>
30. <ServerId>19:3</ServerId>
31. <ApplicationData>
32. <airsyncbase:Body>
33. <airsyncbase:Type>1</airsyncbase:Type>
34. <airsyncbase:EstimatedDataSize>0</airsyncbase:EstimatedDataSize>
35. <airsyncbase:Truncated>1</airsyncbase:Truncated>
36. </airsyncbase:Body>
37. <tasks:Subject>Email management team about next round of quarterlies</tasks:Subject>
38. <tasks:Importance>1</tasks:Importance>
39. <tasks:UtcStartDate>2008-10-02T07:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcStartDate>
40. <tasks:StartDate>2008-10-02T00:00:00.000Z</tasks:StartDate>
41. <tasks:UtcDueDate>2008-10-02T07:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcDueDate>
42. <tasks:DueDate>2008-10-02T00:00:00.000Z</tasks:DueDate>
43. <tasks:Complete>0</tasks:Complete>
44. <tasks:Sensitivity>0</tasks:Sensitivity>
45. <tasks:ReminderSet>0</tasks:ReminderSet>
46. </ApplicationData>
47. </Add>
48. <Delete>
49. <ServerId>19:2</ServerId>
50. </Delete>
51. </Commands>
52. </Collection>
53. </Collections>
54. </Sync>

## Fetching Task Data with the ItemOperations Command

The following example demonstrates a client’s request to retrieve information from the server for a particular task, and the server’s response. The client sends an **ItemOperations** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.10) to the server, and the server responds with an **ItemOperations** command response ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.10). This example assumes that the server has assigned a Collection ID of 11 to the **Tasks** collection.

Request:

1. <?xml version="1.0" encoding="utf-8"?>
2. <ItemOperations xmlns:airsync="AirSync:"
3. xmlns:airsyncbase="AirSyncBase:" xmlns="ItemOperations:">
4. <Fetch>
5. <Store>Mailbox</Store>
6. <airsync:CollectionId>11</airsync:CollectionId>
7. <airsync:ServerId>11:1</airsync:ServerId>
8. <Options>
9. <airsyncbase:BodyPreference>
10. <airsyncbase:Type>1</airsyncbase:Type>
11. <airsyncbase:TruncationSize>256</airsyncbase:TruncationSize>
12. <airsyncbase:AllOrNone>0</airsyncbase:AllOrNone>
13. </airsyncbase:BodyPreference>
14. </Options>
15. </Fetch>
16. </ItemOperations>

Response:

1. <?xml version="1.0" encoding="utf-8"?>
2. <ItemOperations xmlns:airsync="AirSync:" xmlns:tasks="Tasks:" xmlns:airsyncbase="AirSyncBase:" xmlns="ItemOperations:">
3. <Status>1</Status>
4. <Response>
5. <Fetch>
6. <Status>1</Status>
7. <airsync:CollectionId>11</airsync:CollectionId>
8. <airsync:ServerId>11:1</airsync:ServerId>
9. <airsync:Class>Tasks</airsync:Class>
10. <Properties>
11. <airsyncbase:Body>
12. <airsyncbase:Type>1</airsyncbase:Type>
13. <airsyncbase:EstimatedDataSize>0</airsyncbase:EstimatedDataSize>
14. </airsyncbase:Body>
15. <tasks:Subject>Complete This Week's Test Run </tasks:Subject>
16. <tasks:Importance>2</tasks:Importance>
17. <tasks:UtcStartDate>2009-11-18T08:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcStartDate>
18. <tasks:StartDate>2009-11-18T00:00:00.000Z</tasks:StartDate>
19. <tasks:UtcDueDate>2009-11-27T08:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcDueDate>
20. <tasks:DueDate>2009-11-27T00:00:00.000Z</tasks:DueDate>
21. <tasks:Complete>0</tasks:Complete>
22. <tasks:Sensitivity>2</tasks:Sensitivity>
23. <tasks:ReminderTime>2009-11-27T16:00:00.000Z</tasks:ReminderTime>
24. <tasks:ReminderSet>1</tasks:ReminderSet>
25. </Properties>
26. </Fetch>
27. </Response>
28. </ItemOperations>

## Searching for Tasks

The following example demonstrates a client’s request to find all tasks on the server that contain the word "Test", and the server’s response. The client sends a **Search** command request ([[MS-ASCMD]](file:///E:\Target\Exchange\Published\Books\MS-ASTASK\%5bMS-ASCMD%5d.pdf#Section_1a3490f1afe1418aaa926f630036d65a) section 2.2.2.16) to the server, and the server responds with a **Search** command response ([MS-ASCMD] section 2.2.2.16). This example assumes that the server has assigned a Collection ID of 11 to the **Tasks** collection.

Request:

1. <?xml version="1.0" encoding="utf-8"?>
2. <Search xmlns="Search:" xmlns:airsync="AirSync:"
3. >
4. <Store>
5. <Name>Mailbox</Name>
6. <Query>
7. <And>
8. <airsync:Class>Tasks</airsync:Class>
9. <airsync:CollectionId>11</airsync:CollectionId>
10. <FreeText>Test</FreeText>
11. </And>
12. </Query>
13. <Options>
14. <RebuildResults />
15. <Range>0-4</Range>
16. </Options>
17. </Store>
18. </Search>

Response:

1. <Search xmlns:A0="AirSync:" xmlns:tasks="Tasks:" xmlns:airsyncbase="AirSyncBase:" xmlns="Search:">
2. <Status>1 Success</Status>
3. <Response>
4. <Store>
5. <Status>1 Success</Status>
6. <Result>
7. <A0:Class>Tasks</A0:Class>
8. <LongId>RgAAAADl9NP3UFJNRpgIYBWT6lSUBwDqXN0OYiDySoYnY1igrbIlAAAAAAAqAADqXN0OYiDySoYnY1igrbIlAAAAAGHBAAAT</LongId>
9. <A0:CollectionId>11</A0:CollectionId>
10. <Properties>
11. <airsyncbase:Body>
12. <airsyncbase:Type>1</airsyncbase:Type>
13. <airsyncbase:EstimatedDataSize>0</airsyncbase:EstimatedDataSize>
14. <airsyncbase:Truncated>1</airsyncbase:Truncated>
15. </airsyncbase:Body>
16. <tasks:Subject>Complete This Week's Test Run </tasks:Subject>
17. <tasks:Importance>2</tasks:Importance>
18. <tasks:UtcStartDate>2009-11-18T08:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcStartDate>
19. <tasks:StartDate>2009-11-18T00:00:00.000Z</tasks:StartDate>
20. <tasks:UtcDueDate>2009-11-27T08:00:00.000Z</tasks:UtcDueDate>
21. <tasks:DueDate>2009-11-27T00:00:00.000Z</tasks:DueDate>
22. <tasks:Complete>0</tasks:Complete>
23. <tasks:Sensitivity>2</tasks:Sensitivity>
24. <tasks:ReminderTime>2009-11-27T16:00:00.000Z</tasks:ReminderTime>
25. <tasks:ReminderSet>1</tasks:ReminderSet>
26. </Properties>
27. </Result>
28. <Range>0-0</Range>
29. <Total>1</Total>
30. </Store>
31. </Response>
32. </Search>

# Security

## Security Considerations for Implementers

None.

## Index of Security Parameters

None

# Appendix A: Full XML Schema

For ease of implementation, the following is the full XML schema for this protocol. This schema is valid for protocol versions 2.5, 12.0, 12.1, 14.0, 14.1, 16.0, and 16.1.

1. <?xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8"?>
2. <xs:schema xmlns:xs="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema" xmlns="Tasks"
3. targetNamespace="Tasks" elementFormDefault="qualified"
4. attributeFormDefault="unqualified">
5. <xs:element name="Subject" type="xs:string"/>
6. <xs:element name="Body" type="xs:string"/>
7. <xs:element name="BodySize" type="xs:integer"/>
8. <xs:element name="BodyTruncated" type="xs:boolean"/>
9. <xs:element name="Importance" type="xs:unsignedByte"/>
10. <xs:element name="UtcStartDate" type="xs:dateTime"/>
11. <xs:element name="StartDate" type="xs:dateTime"/>
12. <xs:element name="UtcDueDate" type="xs:dateTime"/>
13. <xs:element name="DueDate" type="xs:dateTime"/>
14. <xs:element name="Categories">
15. <xs:complexType>
16. <xs:sequence minOccurs="0">
17. <xs:element name="Category" type="xs:string" maxOccurs="300"/>
18. </xs:sequence>
19. </xs:complexType>
20. </xs:element>
21. <xs:element name="Recurrence">
22. <xs:complexType>
23. <xs:all>
24. <xs:element name="Type" type="xs:unsignedByte"/>
25. <xs:element name="Start" type="xs:dateTime"/>
26. <xs:element name="Until" type="xs:dateTime" minOccurs="0"/>
27. <xs:element name="Occurrences" type="xs:unsignedByte" minOccurs="0"/>
28. <xs:element name="Interval" type="xs:unsignedShort" minOccurs="0"/>
29. <xs:element name="DayOfWeek" type="xs:unsignedByte" minOccurs="0"/>
30. <xs:element name="DayOfMonth" type="xs:unsignedByte" minOccurs="0"/>
31. <xs:element name="WeekOfMonth" type="xs:unsignedByte" minOccurs="0"/>
32. <xs:element name="MonthOfYear" type="xs:unsignedByte" minOccurs="0"/>
33. <xs:element name="Regenerate" type="xs:unsignedByte" minOccurs="0"/>
34. <xs:element name="DeadOccur" type="xs:unsignedByte" minOccurs="0"/>
35. <xs:element name="CalendarType" type="xs:unsignedByte" minOccurs="0"/>
36. <xs:element name="IsLeapMonth" type="xs:unsignedByte" minOccurs="0"/>
37. <xs:element name="FirstDayOfWeek" minOccurs="0">
38. <xs:simpleType>
39. <xs:restriction base="xs:unsignedByte">
40. <xs:minInclusive value="0"/>
41. <xs:maxInclusive value="6"/>
42. </xs:restriction>
43. </xs:simpleType>
44. </xs:element>
45. </xs:all>
46. </xs:complexType>
47. </xs:element>
48. <xs:element name="Complete" type="xs:unsignedByte"/>
49. <xs:element name="DateCompleted" type="xs:dateTime"/>
50. <xs:element name="Sensitivity" type="xs:unsignedByte"/>
51. <xs:element name="ReminderTime" type="xs:dateTime"/>
52. <xs:element name="ReminderSet" type="xs:unsignedByte"/>
53. <xs:element name="OrdinalDate" type="xs:dateTime"/>
54. <xs:element name="SubOrdinalDate" type="xs:string"/>
55. <xs:group name="AllProps">
56. <xs:sequence>
57. <xs:choice maxOccurs="unbounded">
58. <xs:element ref="Subject"/>
59. <xs:element ref="Body"/>
60. <xs:element ref="BodySize"/>
61. <xs:element ref="BodyTruncated"/>
62. <xs:element ref="Importance"/>
63. <xs:element ref="UtcStartDate"/>
64. <xs:element ref="StartDate"/>
65. <xs:element ref="UtcDueDate"/>
66. <xs:element ref="DueDate"/>
67. <xs:element ref="Categories"/>
68. <xs:element ref="Recurrence"/>
69. <xs:element ref="Complete"/>
70. <xs:element ref="DateCompleted"/>
71. <xs:element ref="Sensitivity"/>
72. <xs:element ref="ReminderTime"/>
73. <xs:element ref="ReminderSet"/>
74. <xs:element ref="OrdinalDate"/>
75. <xs:element ref="SubOrdinalDate"/>
76. </xs:choice>
77. </xs:sequence>
78. </xs:group>
79. </xs:schema>

# Appendix B: Product Behavior

The information in this specification is applicable to the following Microsoft products or supplemental software. References to product versions include released service packs.

* Microsoft Exchange Server 2007 Service Pack 1 (SP1)
* Microsoft Exchange Server 2010
* Microsoft Exchange Server 2013
* Microsoft Exchange Server 2016

Exceptions, if any, are noted below. If a service pack or Quick Fix Engineering (QFE) number appears with the product version, behavior changed in that service pack or QFE. The new behavior also applies to subsequent service packs of the product unless otherwise specified. If a product edition appears with the product version, behavior is different in that product edition.

Unless otherwise specified, any statement of optional behavior in this specification that is prescribed using the terms SHOULD or SHOULD NOT implies product behavior in accordance with the SHOULD or SHOULD NOT prescription. Unless otherwise specified, the term MAY implies that the product does not follow the prescription.

[<1> Section 2.2.2.10](#Appendix_A_Target_1): When the **Type** element value is 0, Exchange 2007 SP1 responds with a status 6 if **DayOfWeek** is set in the request.

[<2> Section 2.2.2.25](#Appendix_A_Target_2): Microsoft Exchange Server 2010 Service Pack 1 (SP1), the initial release version of Exchange 2013, and Exchange 2016 do not return the **Start** element when protocol version is 14.0.

# Change Tracking

This section identifies changes that were made to this document since the last release. Changes are classified as New, Major, Minor, Editorial, or No change.

The revision class **New** means that a new document is being released.

The revision class **Major** means that the technical content in the document was significantly revised. Major changes affect protocol interoperability or implementation. Examples of major changes are:

* A document revision that incorporates changes to interoperability requirements or functionality.
* The removal of a document from the documentation set.

The revision class **Minor** means that the meaning of the technical content was clarified. Minor changes do not affect protocol interoperability or implementation. Examples of minor changes are updates to clarify ambiguity at the sentence, paragraph, or table level.

The revision class **Editorial** means that the formatting in the technical content was changed. Editorial changes apply to grammatical, formatting, and style issues.

The revision class **No change** means that no new technical changes were introduced. Minor editorial and formatting changes may have been made, but the technical content of the document is identical to the last released version.

Major and minor changes can be described further using the following change types:

* New content added.
* Content updated.
* Content removed.
* New product behavior note added.
* Product behavior note updated.
* Product behavior note removed.
* New protocol syntax added.
* Protocol syntax updated.
* Protocol syntax removed.
* New content added due to protocol revision.
* Content updated due to protocol revision.
* Content removed due to protocol revision.
* New protocol syntax added due to protocol revision.
* Protocol syntax updated due to protocol revision.
* Protocol syntax removed due to protocol revision.
* Obsolete document removed.

Editorial changes are always classified with the change type **Editorially updated**.

Some important terms used in the change type descriptions are defined as follows:

* **Protocol syntax** refers to data elements (such as packets, structures, enumerations, and methods) as well as interfaces.
* **Protocol revision** refers to changes made to a protocol that affect the bits that are sent over the wire.

The changes made to this document are listed in the following table. For more information, please contact [dochelp@microsoft.com](mailto:dochelp@microsoft.com).

| Section | Tracking number (if applicable) and description | Major change (Y or N) | Change type |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| [1](#Section_f79cd5cb797d4409842c9ad3bea0b170) Introduction | Added protocol version 16.1 | Y | New content added. |
| [2.2.2](#Section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73) Elements | Added protocol version 16.0 to the element support table in each subsection. | Y | Content update. |
| 2.2.2 Elements | Updated the descriptions for the elements throughout this section to include protocol version 16.1. | Y | Content update. |
| [2.2.2.13](#Section_05d687ce95f14caa97d238ff41c3ad54) FirstDayOfWeek | Clarified that the disambiguation is for a task item. | Y | Content update. |
| [2.2.2.25](#Section_efbd0eaee93342bc81a22e68c04d0d5a) Start | Updated list of supporting products. | Y | Product behavior note updated. |
| [6](#Section_c16a3dcbde5b4de99026232654d0628d) Appendix A: Full XML Schema | Updated element CalendarType element of Recurrence to be optional. | N | Content update. |
| 6 Appendix A: Full XML Schema | Updated Tasks schema to include Body, BodySize and BodyTruncated elements. | N | Content update. |
| 6 Appendix A: Full XML Schema | Updated the description to include protocol version 16.1. | Y | Content update. |
| [7](#Section_68e6eddba31e4b7ba2cf6d950c12ebc5) Appendix B: Product Behavior | Updated list of applicable products. | Y | Content update. |

# Index

A

Abstract data model

[client](#section_50b12374a69e4b44bb7a0eaabdc273f7) 38

[server](#section_b698513099874746aa5c0909951a2345) 39

[Applicability](#section_30915235b21a4b53afeed3de745cdedd) 8

C

[Capability negotiation](#section_6817b90727d6443b9331057908657046) 8

[Change tracking](#section_06d119ed14924ad3b2d976281c055a6d) 52

Client

[abstract data model](#section_50b12374a69e4b44bb7a0eaabdc273f7) 38

[initialization](#section_a6753cafefb247c394a9ec8b58be8ffa) 38

[message processing](#section_98cb63dd6a0146609576adde36d78950) 38

[other local events](#section_a1f3bbf65ac549bead6dd5e3b9c97793) 39

[sequencing rules](#section_98cb63dd6a0146609576adde36d78950) 38

[timer events](#section_baad0d3d59f14658989ed553904c8cdd) 39

[timers](#section_5e20fcb7ee3545aea75aaabc21dafa33) 38

D

Data model - abstract

[client](#section_50b12374a69e4b44bb7a0eaabdc273f7) 38

[server](#section_b698513099874746aa5c0909951a2345) 39

E

Elements

[Body](#section_5674d94ea6a64c2bbc8c2a1bf7faba22) 12

[CalendarType](#section_f78253a626d7444cb9a67f9ea6afabe7) 14

[Categories](#section_349237a432364bc696ef5a3d361d688e) 16

[Category](#section_712f9b40361c4c58ab45bbd544dbbe62) 17

[Complete](#section_d889f302aef24cc28b16faa47d39fdbb) 17

[DateCompleted](#section_5d8f055a4c6f413393d79295e2ffeb3f) 18

[DayOfMonth](#section_801de64314df4ff0b7994772a9e406ce) 18

[DayOfWeek](#section_beee519af4cd4fe990cf85d491305807) 19

[DeadOccur](#section_5167f64aef734e22914712abc1f9f5e8) 20

[DueDate](#section_bb1fb37f57ea4a2f9b005668e3f15464) 21

[FirstDayOfWeek](#section_05d687ce95f14caa97d238ff41c3ad54) 22

[Importance](#section_8fdf651fc06e4242a3126b3d9f3c996d) 23

[Interval](#section_be221498a3ca42ad9f88e2605e932755) 23

[IsLeapMonth](#section_c0df3bc2933d4a78aa127ba628aaf1f3) 24

[MonthOfYear](#section_14169443d1414e09a64b7c2bacd07059) 25

[Occurrences](#section_d86b9938dded4709a05b6df38c3f7122) 26

[Recurrence](#section_2483d3cd3116490f94737104dd0e8aca) 27

[Regenerate](#section_095370af32df41f5af33625efa9a053d) 28

[ReminderSet](#section_3e3d65041d2b4ca287675adf0837ce8d) 29

[ReminderTime](#section_57f8dd526d8c4f73ac9805a6666b6fe0) 29

[Sensitivity](#section_4ced6df8ac594cc4ac1b731fae4e90b4) 30

[Start](#section_efbd0eaee93342bc81a22e68c04d0d5a) 31

[StartDate](#section_ed8b11a64c7b41e996348e5aba178699) 31

[Subject](#section_cb5e0b263f7f44c6b5c280646150a2c5) 32

[Type](#section_d0ea9800f8b14c5b871abff4f5c9fbb6) 33

[Until](#section_a5120722333c4f1fbdf1aafc4a307f35) 34

[UtcDueDate](#section_f49b4f9cf44b46e78ba7c5f120aadb85) 35

[UtcStartDate](#section_b3740864729440358ad7ec51fa512a23) 35

[WeekOfMonth](#section_7c96b068550f457d9c986420edb23f22) 36

[Elements message](#section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73) 9

Examples

[fetching task data with the ItemOperations command](#section_20f48c12c3ca47efa17540660bb94fe1) 45

[searching for tasks](#section_b0232087ee3e44d58bf232057d5e3851) 46

[synchronizing tasks between client and server](#section_b7f840932f0544359e16bef2f2c54306) 43

[synchronizing tasks on the client](#section_183978328cdc4621a1904238a7bc3bc2) 44

F

[Fields - vendor-extensible](#section_aa32b4b23152450ab1b4fb78f105db93) 8

[Full XML schema](#section_c16a3dcbde5b4de99026232654d0628d) 49

G

[Glossary](#section_1eb49f40e329416bbb48980ac041c5cf) 6

I

[Implementer - security considerations](#section_76a6711be065405a8c74a13da21b119a) 48

[Index of security parameters](#section_bd797059ab9b4d2898179c545245b9d6) 48

[Informative references](#section_d584300a41864bc9b64f88b8a57216ff) 7

Initialization

[client](#section_a6753cafefb247c394a9ec8b58be8ffa) 38

[server](#section_25586271e5d643e5b32fcf3a45ad89e6) 40

[Introduction](#section_f79cd5cb797d4409842c9ad3bea0b170) 6

M

Message processing

[client](#section_98cb63dd6a0146609576adde36d78950) 38

[server](#section_a40f54602ff845b6876e58b8c710307c) 40

Messages

[Elements](#section_0a61ddb0cce1481b94cb2b9a8271da73) 9

[Namespaces](#section_1a06c955c1df4a8a89f205cf11980be2) 9

[syntax](#section_d4e56ad8dce241a2889d3b297528f7f2) 9

[transport](#section_3e81ff9093194208afa0e55ca864e5da) 9

N

[Namespaces message](#section_1a06c955c1df4a8a89f205cf11980be2) 9

[Normative references](#section_90d1c4b88dd84ca5a9d1779a228e7a65) 7

O

Other local events

[client](#section_a1f3bbf65ac549bead6dd5e3b9c97793) 39

[server](#section_ad1d012f02cb498f9ad4cb2f1440ab50) 42

[Overview (synopsis)](#section_935adcd134b54b65926d22cb78349a56) 7

P

[Parameters - security index](#section_bd797059ab9b4d2898179c545245b9d6) 48

[Preconditions](#section_d78673b0306145369ae2e806f08cac49) 8

[Prerequisites](#section_d78673b0306145369ae2e806f08cac49) 8

[Product behavior](#section_68e6eddba31e4b7ba2cf6d950c12ebc5) 51

R

[References](#section_287cd03b5ace4ec39c4774b2f05ccaaa) 7

[informative](#section_d584300a41864bc9b64f88b8a57216ff) 7

[normative](#section_90d1c4b88dd84ca5a9d1779a228e7a65) 7

[Relationship to other protocols](#section_90d8c757c758420ebf237453b4058e7b) 7

S

Security

[implementer considerations](#section_76a6711be065405a8c74a13da21b119a) 48

[parameter index](#section_bd797059ab9b4d2898179c545245b9d6) 48

Sequencing rules

[client](#section_98cb63dd6a0146609576adde36d78950) 38

[server](#section_a40f54602ff845b6876e58b8c710307c) 40

Server

[abstract data model](#section_b698513099874746aa5c0909951a2345) 39

[initialization](#section_25586271e5d643e5b32fcf3a45ad89e6) 40

[message processing](#section_a40f54602ff845b6876e58b8c710307c) 40

[other local events](#section_ad1d012f02cb498f9ad4cb2f1440ab50) 42

[sequencing rules](#section_a40f54602ff845b6876e58b8c710307c) 40

[timer events](#section_00a75a0a18814b84bc8741835fffe71c) 42

[timers](#section_4fca61a23e9a4f109a254234b3cda341) 40

[Standards assignments](#section_f7f1370e06c0451b896cf2223753b935) 8

T

Timer events

[client](#section_baad0d3d59f14658989ed553904c8cdd) 39

[server](#section_00a75a0a18814b84bc8741835fffe71c) 42

Timers

[client](#section_5e20fcb7ee3545aea75aaabc21dafa33) 38

[server](#section_4fca61a23e9a4f109a254234b3cda341) 40

[Tracking changes](#section_06d119ed14924ad3b2d976281c055a6d) 52

[Transport](#section_3e81ff9093194208afa0e55ca864e5da) 9

V

[Vendor-extensible fields](#section_aa32b4b23152450ab1b4fb78f105db93) 8

[Versioning](#section_6817b90727d6443b9331057908657046) 8

X

[XML schema](#section_c16a3dcbde5b4de99026232654d0628d) 49